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INDEPENDENT AUDBITOR’S REPORT
To the Memberts of Nightingaie Hofels Private Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial State ments

We have audited the accompanving Ind AS financil stalements of Mightingale Hotels Private
Limited (“the Company™). which comprise the Balince Sheet as at March 31. 2047, the Statermen ol
Profil and Loss, incliding the statement of Other Comprehensive income, the Cash Flow Statement
and the Siatement of Changes i Equity for (he vear then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explinatory information.

Management’s Responsibility (or the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is msponsible for the matters slated in Section 134(3) of the
Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act™) with respect (o the preparation of these Ind AS Financial siatements
that give a truc and fair view of the financial posiion. fimancial performance including other
compreliensive income, cash Iows and changes in egoity of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted i India. incloding the Indian Account g Standards (Ind
AS) specificd under scetion 133 of the Act.. read with he Companies (Indian Accounting Slandards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibilily alko inchides nminienance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safoguarding ol the asscis of the Company
and for prevenling and detecting frauds and other irregularilics; sefection and application of
appropriale accounting policics: making judgments and estimates that are reasomble and prodeut: and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were opctaling
offectively for ensuring (he accmacy and compleieness of the accounting records, relevaat io the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statcments (hat give a true and fair view and are
ftee Mrom nwatcrinl misstatement. whether due to fraud or errot.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsipility s to cxpress an opinion on these Ind AS linancial stalemenis based on our audit.
We lLuve taken into account the provisious of the Act, the accounting and aunditing standards and
matters which are required to be inclided in the audit report unsder the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thercunder. We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements
accordance with the Standards on Auditing. issucd by the Institute of Clarlered Accountants of India,
as specified under Section 143( 1) of the Act. Thosc Standards require that we comply wilh ethical
requircmients and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assmmnce aboul whether the
financial statements arc free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures 1o oblain audit evidence aboul the amounts a ud disclosurcs
in the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment. incfiding the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS linancial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making hose risk assessmcats, the auditor considers internal Financ il control
relevant (o the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statcments that give a true ad fair view
in order {o design audit procedurcs that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating (he appropriateness of accounting policies used and the rcasonablencss of the acconnting
estimaies made by the Company’s Dircctors. as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind
AS financial statements. We believe that the audil evidence we bhave oblained is sufficient and
approprialc to provide a basis for our audit opinion on (he Ind AS fimancial stalcments.
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(Chartered Accountants)

Opinion

In our epinion and (o the best of our information and according to (he explanations given o us, the
Ind AS finncial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a (e and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles ge nerally accepied in India, of

the

stale of allairs of the Company as at March 31, 2017, iis loss including other comprehensive

income. its cash flows and the changes in equity for the vear ended on (haf date.
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port on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s reporty Order. 2016 (“the Order”™) issued by the Central
Governmenl of India in lerms of sub-section (11) of scction 43 of Ihe Act. we give in (he
Annesure | a statenent on the malters specilied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by scetion 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliel were necessary (or the purpose of our audit

Tt our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company o Far
as il appeats from owr examination of those books;

The Balnce Sheet. Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
tncomme. the Cash Flow Statemnent and Stalement of Changes in Ecuily dealt wilh by this Report
are i agrcement with the books of account;

In our apinion. (he afaresaid Ind AS Financiaf statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified vnder section 133 of the Act, read with Companics (Indian Acconnting Standards)
Rules. 2015, as amended:

On the basis ol written representations received (rom the directors as on March31, 2017, and
akenon record by the Board of Dircctors. none of the directors is disqualified as on
March3t, 2017, Trom being appointed as a director in erms of scetion 164 (2) of the Act:

With respect to the adequacy of the imternal financial controls over financial repotling of the
Company and the operating clfectivencss of such controls. refet (o our scpatate Report in
“Auncxure 27 1o this repori;

With respect {o the other matiers to be inclided in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rukes, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on ils financial position in its
Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 27 to the Ind AS financial stafements:

ii.  The Company did not have anv long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foresceable losses.

{ii.  Therc were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Tivestor Education and
Protcgtion Fund by the Compay,




Jain Jindal & Co.
(Chartered Accountants)

iv. The Compsay las provided requisite disclosures i Note 33 1o {hese Tod AS fwancial
statemcnls 4s o the Tolding of Specified Bank Notes on November 8. 2016 and Deccmber
30, 2016 as welt as dealings in Specilied Bank Noies during the period from November 8,
2016 o December 30, 2016, Bused on our audit procedures and relying on the management
representalion regarding the hokting and nature of cash transactions, including Specilied
Bank Noles, we weport that these disclosures are in accordaice with the books of accounts
mainiained by the Company and as produced 1o us by the Managemenl,

Oiher Madier

The comparalive financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31 2016 and the
transition datc opening balance sheet as al April 0f 2015 mcleded in (hese standatone Ind AS
financial statements, aic based on the previously issued stalutory financial stalomends prepaied in
aceordance with the Companics (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the predecessor
audilor whose report for the year ended Mareh 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 dated June 16, 2016 and
June 15. 2015 respectively expressed an unmodified opmion on {hose lnancial stalements. as adjusted
for (he differences in (he accounting principles adopled by the Company on transition to the Ind AS,
which have becn audited by us,

ForJain Jindat & Co.
Firm Registration No: 023817N
Charlered f—\ccounl?nls o
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Romesh Vijay [ '
Parlner

Membership No.: 411274
Place: New Delhi
Date: June 13, 2017
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 ouader the heading “Report on other legal and
regulatory reyuirements” ofourveportofeven date

Re: Mightingale Holels Private Linvited ("the Company™)

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(¥i)

(vii)

a) The Company is nmintaining proper records showing Tull partieolars, including
guantitative details and sitvation of Ixed assets.

by The Company has physicaliv verilicd the xed assels al reasotable infervals, there
were no malerial discrepancy during the physical verification ol lixed assels.

¢) The company is holding the title deeds of immiovable propertics in ils namc,

The management has conducted plysical verification of inventory at reasonable intcnvals
during (he vearand no material discrepancics were neticed on physical verification.

The Company has not granted any loan o a compaiy covered in the register maintained
uuder section 189 of the Companies Acl. 2013, Accordingly, provisions of, clause 3{i)
(a). (b and () of the Oreder are not applicable o the Company.

The Cowmpany has complied with provision of section 185 and section 186 of the
Companies Act 2013 for investiments made during the year. The Company has not made
any loans guarantees, and securitics during the year.

The Company has not accepled any deposits from the public in terms of directive ssued
by Rescrve Bank ol India and provision of section 73 to 76 of the Companics Act. 2013,

To the best of our know ledge and as explained. the central government hias not prescribed
(he maintcnance of cosl records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies
Act 2013,

a) Undispuled statutory dues including provident fund, cmployee slate insurance, kbout
wellare Tund. income-lax. service fax. value added (ax. cess and other material siatutory
dues have gencrally been regulatly deposited with the approprinie authorities though there
lhas been a slight delay in a few cases. The provisions rekated to excisc and customs duty
are nol applicable 1o the Company.

b) According to information and explanation given (o us, there are no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of incomme tax, sales tax, wealth (ax. service tax, duly of customs, valie
added tax, excise duty cess and ofher maicrial statutory dues werc outstanding for a
period of more than six months from the date they become payable,

¢) According to information and explanation given 10 us cxcept disc loscd below there are
ne dues of Income tax, sales lax, scrvice lax, duty of cusloms. valiue added tax and cess
which have nol been deposited on account of dispute.




Jain Jindal & Co.

(Chartered Accountants)

Paritcnlavs Amount Amount Beposifed Amouni Remals
Demanded under dispute unpaid
[ncome Tax 718,760 460.000 258760 ¢ Appeal pending
AY 2011-2012 with C1T (Appeals)

(vii)  [n owr opinon and according to information and explination given by the management,
the Campany has not defaulted in repayment of ducs (o ba nk. The Company did not have
any outstanding ducs i respect of financial institutions or debenture holders during, the

year,

(ix) The Company has nol raised any moneys by way of mitial public offcr or further public
offer and termu loan during the vear,

(x} To the best of owr knowledge no fraud is conunitied by (he company o any fraud on the
company by its officers or emplovees has been noticed or reporied during, the vear.

{xi) The wanagerial remaneration has been paid or provided during the year is in accordance
with (he requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read wilh
Schedule V to the Companics Act,

(xify  The company is not a Nidhi Company so Nidhi Rufes. 2014 are nol applicable to the
COMyINy.

(xiih) Al transactions entered during the year wilh the gelated patly are in compliance with the
provisions of seclions 188 and scction 177 of Companies Act, 2013 and where applicable
and the detaits with respect (o all relaled party transactions have been disclosed in the
Financial Stalcments as required by applicable accounting standards.

(xivy  The company has not made any preferential allotment or private plcement of shares or
Fully or pattially convertible debentures

(xv)  The Company has not enfesed into any non-cash transaction with the director or person
connected with director as requircd under section 192 of The Companies Act, 2013,

(xvi)  The company is not reguired to be registered under section 43-1A of the Resenc Bauk of
[ndia, [934.

For Jain Jindal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
[CALFirm Registratiot NumbgleB2as

"\ Fewda

Romesh Vijay
Partner ]

=
Membership Number: 41 l}l i
Place: New Delhi R

Date: June 13, 2017
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS OF NIGHTINGALE HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Tndernal Financizl Controls unde i Clause (i) of Sabh-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companics Act, 2013 (“the Aet™)

We have audited the internal financia | conlrols over financial reporting of’ Nightingale Hotels Private
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our awdii of the standalonc
financial statements of the Company for (he vear ended on that dale.

Manage meni’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management s responsible [or establishing and maintaiming nternal Financial
contiols based on “the micrnal control over financial reporting crileria established by the Company
considering the cssential components of internal control siated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
tnternal Financinl Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chariered Accountants
of India”. These responsibilitics inchide the design. implementation and mainterance ol adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and cfficient
conduct of ils business. wcluding adhcrence to company’'s policics, the safeguarding of its assels, the
prevention and detection of frauds and crrors, (he accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records. and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Acl, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal lnanc ial conlrols over Fmancial
reporiing based on our audit. We conducted our andit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repotting (the “Guidance Nofe™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by 1CAT and deenied (o be prescribed under section [43(10) of the Companies Acl,
2013, to (he extent applicable 1o an audit of internal fimarcial contyols. both applicable (o an audit of
Internal Finane iat Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plin and
perform the audit lo oblain reasonable assurance about whether adequale internat financial conirals
over finang ial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effeclively i all
material respects.

Owr audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adcquacy of the intcrnal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audil of
internal Financial controls over Financial reporting included oblaining an undevstanding of internal
financial controls over lnancial veporling. assessing the risk hat a material weakness exisls., and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of mternal control baged on Lhe asscssed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement. including the assessnent of the risks
of malerial misstatcment of the financial statements. whether due (o fraud or ernor.

We believe that the audii evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opition on the Company’s internal linancial controls system over financial teporting,
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(Chartered Accountants)

Meaning of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's inlernal Tinancial control over financial reporting is a process designed o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financinl reporting and the preparation ol financial
statcments for external purposcs in accordance with gencrally accepled accounting principles. A
company's intermal finaucial contrel over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain (o the maintenance of rccords that, in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect
(he transactions and dispositions of the assets of (he company: (2) provide reasonable assurance thai
{ransactions are recorded as necessary o permit preparation of financial statements in agcordance with
penceally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expendilnres of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3)
provide tcasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
usc, o disposition of the company's asscts that coukd have « material elfect on the financial
statements,

Inhevent Limitations of Inte rnal Financial Controls Over Rinancial Reporting

Becnuse of the inherent limitations of internal Financial controls over financial reporting,. inc luding the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of conirols. material nisstatements due 1o
error or Mraud may occur and not be detceted. Also. projections of any evalualion of (he internal
financial contrals over financial reporting fo future periods are subject (o the risk that the inlernal
financial confrol over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes m conditions. or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

[n owr opinion, the Company has. in all malcrial respects. an adequate mernal financial controls
svstem over financial reporting and such internal lnanc ial controls over linancial reporling were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on “the inernal control over [inanciat rcporting
criteria established by the Company considering the cssential components of internal control stated in
(he Guidance Note on Audit of Imernat Financiat Controls Over Financial Reporting issusd by the
lnstituic of Chartered Accounlants of [ndia™.

For Jain Jindal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICALFirm Registratjon Number: 025817N
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Romesh Vijay

Partuer
Membership Number: 4112
Place: New Delhi

Date: June 13, 2017
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Nighiingale Holels Private Limited
Ralance Sheel ss at March 31, 2017

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Notes Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
ASSETS
Non-gurrent assets -
Properly, plant and equipment 3 9,766.71 10,187.87 10,579.84
intangible assets 4 27.89 35.59 43.28
Financia) assets 5
Investments 1,000.060 1,000.00 -
Other financinl assets 134.82 121.80 99.06
(hther non-current assets 6 3142 21.28 8.27
10,960.84 11,366.54 13,730.45
Current assets
inventorics 7 23.71 23.01 11.65
Finuncial assets g8 . '
Trade receivables 142,19 188.90 50,76
Cash and ¢ash cquivalenis 75.87 63.17 1,565.73
Investments 5 254,50 178.26 -
Loans - - 1.08
Other linancial assets 14,11 1.01 1.01
Other cuirent assets 9 60,47 63.10 9.29
574.85 517.43 1.639.52
Total Assets 11,531.69 11,883.99 12,365,97
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity sharc capital 10 1,303.66 1,303.66 1,303.66
Other equity 11 4,552.76 4,737.51 5215.02
Total equity 5.856.42 6,041.17 6,518.68
Linbitities
Naoun-current liakititics
Finuncial habilitics 12
Borrowings 5,300.43 5,406,88 5.470.86
Lonyg terin provisions 13 3.38 2.31 0,25
5,303.78 5,409.19 5,471,411
Current liabilitics
Finaneial liabilitics 14 :
“T'rade payalles 178,15 15119 95,15
Other [nancial abilitics 130.03 212,13 247.06
Other current liabilities 15 ST.79 66.24 36.05
Provisions i3 5.52 4.16 1.2
371.49 433.63 380.18
Tolnd Liubilities 5,675.27 5,842.83 5,831.29
Total Equity and Liabilitics 11,531.69 11,883.00 12,369.97
Sutmary of signifieant nccounting polieics z

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our repoti of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nightingale Hotels Private Limited

Fur Jain Jindal & Co,
Firm Registration No; 025817N
(;hm'tcred Accountants ' .
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Romesh Vijay } Rifesh Kumar _
Partner Director

Membership No.: 411274 Din No: 05251730
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138 andeep Kumar
hief Financial Officer

‘{: ;
Company Secretury

Place : New Delhi
Date : June 13,2017

Place : New Delhi
ate : June 13, 2017



Nightingale Hotels Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3f March, 2017

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Notes Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Revenue from operations 16 2,349.64 1,867.60
Other income 17 .42 5.52
Total Income 2.358.06 1,873.12
Expoenses
Cost of materials consumed 18 186,29 157.18
Employee benefits expense 19 459,69 356,34
Other expenses 20 810.10 661.66
Total expenses 1,456.08 1,215.18
Eurnings before interest, tax, deprecintion and 901.98 657.94
amartisatian (EBITDA)
Finance costs 21 662,79 731.33
Depreciation and amortization expense 22 446.30 442.94
Finance Income 23 (22.77) (44.15)
Luss belore tax (184.34) {472.18)
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax - 3.39
(2) Adjustment of tax relating to carlier periods 0.10 -
(3) Deferred tax - ~

0.1¢ 3.39
Loss for the perfod (184.44) (475.57)
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 0.,31) (1.94)
Income tax cffect } - -
Total Comprehensive Income For the period {Comprising (184.75) (477.51)
Prafit /(Loss) and Other Comprehensive [ncome for the
perind}
Eurnings per cquity share (for continuing operation): 24 .
(1) Basic (0.14) (C.37)
(2) Diluted (0.14) (0.37)

2

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

IFor Jain Jindal & Co.

Firm Registration No: 025817N
Chartered Accountants #

| } . of
Romesh Vijay
Partner

Membership No.: 411274

Iy

Place : New Delhi
Date : Junc 13, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nighiingale Hotels Private Limited

k\)'.\),\ f,,»'
Rajesh Kumar
Director
Din No: 05251730
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/{:"—» andeep Kumar

Company Secretary : @hicfﬁnancial Officer

S¢ua#f Manchanda

Place : New Delhi
Date ; June 13,2017



Nightingale Hotels Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

A, Equity Share Capital

T.quity shares of INR 1 each issued, subscribed and

fully paid

At E April 2015
issuc of share capital
At 31 March 2016

Issue of share capital
At 31 March 2017

B, Other Equity

For the year ended 31 March, 2017

No, of shares Amount
Rupees in Jakhs
130,366,000 1,303.66
130,366,000 1,303.66
130,366,000 1,303.66

Rescrves and Surplus

Securitics Premium
Reserve

Retained Farnings

Total equity

Rs in lalkhs

Rs in lalchs

Rs in lakhs

Balance at 1 April 2015 5,536.60 (321.58) 5,215.02

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (477.51) (477.51)

Balance at 1 April 2016 5,536.60 (799.09) 4,737.51

Totai Comprehensive Income for the year - (184.75) (184,73)

Balanceat 31 March 2017 5,536.60 (983.34) 4,552.76
2

Summary of significant accounting policies

As per our report of even date

Tor Jain Jindal & Co.
Firm Registration No: 025817N
Chartered Accountants ;
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Roumesh Vijay
Partner
Menbership No.: 411274

Place : New Dethi
Date : Juns 13, 2017

Tor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nightingale Hotels Private Limited

*,

\f}‘\?i?\l
Rajeev Janveja

Whole Time Dirkctor
Din No: 07334001

li Manchanda
Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Date : Junc 13,2017
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Rajgsm,

Director
Din No: 05251730
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Kan '/'écp Kumar

inancial Officer



Nightingale Hotels Private Limited
Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2017

) . March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
1ts jn Inkhs Rs in lakhs

Operating activities

Loss before lax {184.34) (472.18)
Adjustments to reconcile profit/(loss) before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisaticn expenses 446.30 44294
Finance income {including fair value change in financial instruments) (11.20) (12.66)
Jinance costs (including feir value change in financial instruments) 639,74 7i1.14
Provision for slow moving /mon moving inventory L.07) -
Provision for gratuity 090 G.64
Provision for leave encashment 1.19 1.73
Excess provision/ credil balances written back (1.0} (0.40}
Nel (gain)/ loss on sale of current investments (11.57} -
87995 671.21
Working Capital Adjustment:
Change in trade receivables 46,71 (138.14)
Change in loans and advances and other currcal assels (23.49) (75.45)
Changg in inventorics (0,63} (11.36)
Change in liabilities and provisions {106.59) 21,23
795.95 467.49
Income tax paid (nct of refunds) (10.24) (18.31)
Nef cash fow from operating activifies 785,71 449,18
Investing activities
Purchase of property plant and equipment (17.44) (41.36)
Purchasc ol non current investment - (1,000.00)
{Purchasc)/sale of current investments (63.00) (175.36)
Interest received 9,52 9.76
Net Cash flow used in investing activities (70.%2) (1,206.96)
Finuncing activities
Repayment of long term borrowings (69.26} (55.74)
Interest paid {632.83) (689.04)
Net Cash from financing activities (702,09} (744.78)
Net inerease/(decrense) in cash and cash equivalents 12,70 (1,502,56)
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year 63.17 1,565.73
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15.87 63.17
Components of eash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 1.09 2,96
Balances with scheduled Banks in
Current accounts 74,74 60.21
Total cash and cash equivatents 75.87 63.17

Summary of signiticant accounting pelicics

As per our report of even date

As per eur report of even date

For Jain Jindal & Co,
Firm Registration No: 025817N
Clm',r{?rcd Accountants ‘_
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Romesh Vijay
Partner

Membership No.: 411274

Placc ; New Delhi
Date; June 13,2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
Nightingale Hotels Private Limited
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Whole Time Director
Din No; 07334001

Sonakli Manchanda
Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Date: June 13,2017
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Director
Din No: 05251730
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Nightingale Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

1.

2.1

2.2
(@)

- Corporate Information

Nightingale Hotels Private Limited (the Company) is a private company domiciled in India
and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act ‘applicable in India. The
registered office of the company is located at B-6/17, Safdarjung Enclave, New Delhi-110029.

The principal activities of the Company is to carry out business of developing, owning,
acquiring, renovating and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, etc.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on 13" June 2617,

Basis of preparation
Significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in aceordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015,

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its
financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 (Indian GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 are the
first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer to note 32 for information
on how the Company adopied Ind AS,

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost or at amortised cost except
for the following assets and liabilities:

¢ Net defined benefit (asset)/liability
* Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments),

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to
the nearest lakhs, expéct where otherwise indicated.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Current versus non-current classification

The 'Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification, An asset is treated as current when it is:

» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading ]

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be seitled in normal operating cycle

e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading .
* It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
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» There is no unconditional right to defer the setflement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Foreign currencies
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average
approximates the actual rate at the date of the fransaction,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss g

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each
balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between.market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
» In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
+ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assefs and liabilities for which fair valve is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair yﬁlgg measurement as a whole:
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o Level | — Quoted (unadiusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpul that is significant to the

fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair
value. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The
management selects external valuer on various criteria such as market krowledge, reputation,
independence and whether protessional standards arc maintained by valuer. The management
decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques

and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifics the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valvation computation te contracts and

other relevant docuimnents,

The management, it conjunction with the Company’s cxternal valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine

whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
Jiabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the

level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are

given in the relevant notes.

» Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 25)

¢ Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 29)
« Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 29)

(d) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, repardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The
Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent. The Company has concluded- that it is acting as a principal in all of its
revenue arrangements. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met

before revenue is recognized.

Sales tax/ value added tax (VAT) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather,
it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government.

Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.
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Rooms, Restaurant, Banguets and Other Services

Income from guest accommodation is recognized on a day to day basis after the guest checks
into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances, Incomes from other services are recognized
as and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Service Tax, Value Added
Taxes (VAT) and Luxury Tax, Shortfall of revenue over the billed as at the year-end is catried
in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized at
the points of serving these items to the guests. Sales are stated exclusive of Sales Tax / VAT.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest bearing financial assets
classified as available for sale, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability, Interest income is included in finance
income in the income statement. '

Dividends

Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to feceive the payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Gain/(loss} on saie of investment in mutual funds

Gain/(loss) on sale of investment in mutual funds is recorded as other income on transfer of
title from the Company and is determined as the difference between the redemption price and
carrying value of the investments.

Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

- Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations

in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate,

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the

reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can

be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable

that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)

that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in

correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same

taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

) Property, plant and equipment

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its property plant and equipment recognised as at April ‘1, 2015, measured as per the
previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property plant and

equipment,

Freehold land is carried at revalued cost as at transition date.Capital work in progress, plant
and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives, Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and

maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per Schedule 11 of Companies Act, 2013 on

Straight Line Method over its economic useful life of fixed assets as follows:
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Fixed Assets Useful [ife considered
{SE.M)

Plant & Machinery 15 Year
Building ' 60 Years
Electrical installations and fittings 10 Years

Office Equipment’s 5 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years

Vehicles 8 Years
Computers 3 Years

The Company, based on management estimates, depreciates certain items of building,
plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are lower than the useful life
prescribed in Schedule I1 to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that
these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period
over which the assets are likely to be used. 5

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

Intangible assets

On fransition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its Intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP,
and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such Intangible asset.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life.
All intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. '

Costs relating to acquisition of initial software license fee and installation costs are capitalized
in the year of purchase.

Software costs are amortized using the straight line method over their useful lives estimated
by the management at three years.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset

that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are

capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the

petiod in which they occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
o
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incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Inventories

Stock of food & beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable Value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sale, '

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair valueless costs of
disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or Company of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair
value indicators,

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs fo which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years,
For longer periods, a long-terin growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-tern average growth rate for
the products, industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market, in which the
asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount, A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years, Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase,
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Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (fegal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The group
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The group
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long tferm
compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation, The actuarial valuation
is done as per projected unit credit method,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit fo
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
¢ The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
¢ The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset.The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as
an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss:
* Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
» Net inferest expense or income

The company treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes, Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
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unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The company presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional
legal and contractual right fo defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability,

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are atfributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset, Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits
to purchase or sell the asset. '

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following

categories:

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

o Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

o Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

» Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
- payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at ameortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to frade and other receivables,
loans to subsidiaries etc. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 8.

Debt instrument at FVTOCT
A debt instrument is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and
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b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI,

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and - foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously -recognised in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument
is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not mect
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’), The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of
simitar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.c. removed from the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet) when:

¢ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

+ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a °‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) mode} for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:
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a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTGCI

¢) Lease receivables under Ind AS 17

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.

¢) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

f} Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

¢ Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
» All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to frack changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on llfetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If,
in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-mionth ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument, The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is
required to consider: '

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However,
in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated
reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

¢ Tinancial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measutement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount, Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCT: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair
value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCIL
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Financial labilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial Habilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fait value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include - financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and
loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the ETR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 12.
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the group Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the guarantee holder for a loss it incurs because the
Company fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantees issued by the group Company on behalf the Company are
designated as ‘Insurance Contracts’.
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Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are
equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in
business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses .
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original Revised Accounting treatment
classification classification
Amortisedcost | - FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortized cost and
fair value is recognised in P&L.

FVTPL Amortised Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
Cost gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on
the new gross carrying amount.

Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
: Difference between pr evious amortised cost and fair
value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due
to reclassification.

FVTOCI Amortised cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
amortised cost carrying amount. However,
cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against
fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured as if
it had always been measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Tair value at reclassification date becomes its new
carrying amount, No other adjustment is required.
FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value.

Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
OCI is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification
date.
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(o)

(m

Offseiting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a cumrently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Sesment reporting policies
Identification of segments

The management of the Company reviews the specific performance of its respective hotel
properties. However, since all hotels have similarity in terms of products and services,
customer classes, method of providing services and the regulatory environment, the
individual hotels qualify for aggregation. Thus, the management has considered aggregating
all the hotels as one reportable operating segment. Accordingly, the figures appearing in these
financial statements relate to the Company’s single operating segment.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Standards issued but not yet effective

The amendments {o standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the Group’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2017
and has amended the following standard.

Amendment to Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows

The amendments to Ind AS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. On initial application
of the amendment, entities are not required to provide comparative information for preceding
periods. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2017. Application of this amendments will not have any recognition and measurement impact.
However, it will require additional disclosure in the financial statements.

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial
statements is being evaluated.

Amendment to Ind AS 102, Share-based Payment

The MCA has issued amendments to Ind AS 102 that address three main areas: the effects of
vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction, the
classification of a share-based payment transaction with net seftlement features for
withholding tax obligations, and accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions
of a share-based payment transaction changes its classification from cash seftled to equity
settled. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2017.
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(@

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial
statements is being evaluated. The Company will adopt these amendments from ' their
applicability date.

Measurement of EBITDA

The company has ¢lected to present carnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit
and loss, The company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/(loss) from
continuing operation. In its measurement, the company does not include depreciation
and amortization expense, finance costs apd-tax-expense
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5 Financial assets

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

April 1, 2013

Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in jakhs
{a) Investments
Tnvestment at fair value through OCI ( fully paid)
1,600,000 {Previcus year 1,000,000) debentures of lora Holels Private 1,000.,00 1,000.00 -
Limited of Rs. 100 cach fully paid.
Investments at fair value through Profit & Laoss
Unquoted mufual funds
10,422.269 {Previous year 7724.824) Units of Reliance Money Manger 239.15 162.20 -
Plan
703.295 (Previous year 703,295) Units of Reliance Liquid Fund Treasury 15.36 16.06 -
Growth Plan
1,254.50 1,178.26 -
Apgregate ook value of quated investments 254.50 178.26 -
Apgregate amounl of impairement in value of investiments - -
254.50 178.26 -
Current 254.50 178.26 -
Nou-Current 1,000.00 1,000.00 -
1,254.50 1,178.26 -
(b} Other financinl aysets
Mareh 31,2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Security deposits 25.80 20.82 5.50
Interest accrued on deposits with banks and others 27.48 16,43 12.02
Other bank balances 81.55 81.55 81.55
134.82 121.80 99.06
Break up of non-current financial assels carried at amortised cost
Security deposils 25.80 20.82 5.50
tntevest accrued on deposits with banks and others 27.48 19.43 12.02
Other bank balances 81.55 81.55 81.55
Total nen-current financial assets earried at amortised cost 134.82 121.80 99,06
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6  Other non-current assets

March 31,2017  March 31,2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Capital advances ) 0.71 0.71 2.63
Others ‘ . :
Advance Income Tax (net of provision for taxation) 30,71 20.57 5.65
31.42 21.28 8.27

7  Inventories

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

April 1,2015

Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Food and beverages (excluding liquor and wire) 5.17 441 4.34

* Liguor and wine _ ‘ 6.24 6.97 -
Stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others 12.38 11.63 7.31
23.78 23.01 11.65

Less: Provision for slow moving/ non moving stock 0.07 - -
23.71 23.01 11.65
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8 Finaneial assets

March 31,2017 March 31,2016 Aprit 1, 2015

Rs in lalkhs R in lakhs R jn dakhs
(i) Trade receivables
Trade receivables 142,19 188.90 50.7¢
142,19 [88.90 50.76

Break-up for trade receivables;
Secured, considered good - - -
Unsecured, considered good 142.19 188.90 50.76
Doubtiul - - -
) £42,1% 188.90 30,76
Tmpairment Allowanee (allowanee for bad and doubtful debts) )
Unsceured, considered pood - - .
Doubtful - - -

Trade receivable are non interest bearing and generaly on terms of 30-90 days

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

March 31,2017  March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs.in lakhs Rs.in fakhs Rs in lakhs

Balanee with hanks

On current actounts 74,78 60.21 1,560.25
Cash on hand . ERIL 2.96 5.48
7587 63.17 1,565.73

Al March 31, 2017, the Company had available Rs. Nil (Mareh 31, 2016: Rs, Nil, Aprii [, 2015: Nil} of undrawn committed
berrowing facilities.
Cash at bank are non-interest bearing finaneial ussets,

For the purpose of the stulement of cash flows, cash and cush equivalents comprise the following:

March 31, 2617  Macch 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Ry in lakhs Rs in Jakhs Ry in fakhs
Particulars
Balances with banks
On current acesunts 74,78 60.21 1,560.25
Cash on hand 1.09 2.96 548
Total cash and cash equivalents 75.87 63.17 1,565.73

(iif) l.oans

Mareh 31, 2007 March 31,2016 Aprit |, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rg in lakhs

Loans to refated parties . - - 1.08

- - 1.08
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(iv} Otber lirancinl assels

March 31, 2017
s in takhs

Murch 31, 2016
Rs in fakhs

April 1, 2015
Rs in tzkhs

Security deposits 0,72 1.01 101
Unbilted revenue 13,39 - -
14,11 141 1.01

Break up of current {inaneint assets carried at amortised cost
Trade reeeivables 142,19 188.90 50.76
Cash and cagh equivalents 7587 63.17 1,565.13
Securily deposils 0,72 1.01 1.01
Unbilled revenue 13.39 - -
Toetal eurrent financisl assets carvied at amortised cost 232,16 253.08 1,617,351
Giher curreni assels

March 31,2017 March 31,2016 Aprii I, 2015

s in lakhs

Rs in lakhs

Rs in lakhs

Advanee for supply of goods and rendering of services
Balance with statutory/ government authorities
Prepaid expenses

6.02 119 347
18.60 44,66 4.30
35,25 15,24 153
647 63.10 9.29
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10 Equity Share eapital

Authorised Share Capitai

At April 2015
Increase during the year
At 31 Narch 2016
tncrease during the year
At 31 darch 2017

‘Ferms/rights attached to equity shares

Ne. of shares

Rs in Inkhs

130,300,000 1,305.00
130,500,000 1,395.00
130,500,000 1,305.00

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Re. 1 per share. Hach holder of equity shares is entilled 1o one vole per share.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to Teceive remaining assets of the company, aller distribution
of all prelerential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion te the mumber of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

Issued equity capital

Eygnity shares of INR | each issued, subseribed and fully paid

At 1 April 2015
Tnerease during the year
At 3 March 2016
Increase during the year
At3] Mareh 2017

Shares held by helding company:

Equity shares of Re, 1 each Fully paid up
Lemon Tree Llotels Limited

Detrils of sharchelders holding more than 5% shares in the vampany:

Equity shares of INR 1 each fully paid
Lemon Tree Flotels Limited
APG Strategic Real Lstate Pool NV,

T'he emmpany has issued bonus shares in the ratio of 24:1 on [2.01.2015 to exisiing sharcholders.

Other ciuity

Sceurities premium reserve

At April 2005
Increase during the year
At3t March 2016
Increase during the year
At3 March 2087

Retaingd earnings

At1 Aprll 2018
Loss lor the year
At 31 Marel 2016
Loss for the year
At 31 March 2017

Other reserves
Securitics premium reserve
Relained earnings

No. of shares

Rs in lakhs

130,366,000 1,303.66
[30,366,[;“0 1,31]3:66
!30,366.(;0[3 I,JUJ-.66
March M, 2017 March 31, 2016
Nos Nos
75,000,000 75,000,000

Mareh 31,2017

March 31, 2016

No, of shares

% Sharcholding

Neg. of shnres

% Shareholding

75,000,000
55,366,000

Rs in lakhs

5,536.00

5,536.64

Ty in fakhs

(311,58}
(171.51)

(799.09) -

{184.75)
{983.84)

57.53%
42.47%

75,000,000
55,366,000

Mareh 31, 2017
s in lakhs

March 31,2016
Ks in lakhs

April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs

5,5306.60 3,536.60 5,336.60
(983.84) (799.09) {321.58)
4,552,76 4,737,510 5,215.02

57.53%
42,47%
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12 Borrowings

Effective Rate of Mauturity Mareh 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Interest (%) Rs in Ealkhs Rs in lakhs Rs it lukhis
Nen-current borrowings
Term Leans
Inghinn rupee loans from Bunks {Secured)
Punjab National Bank (Refer note § below) - - 546645
Vehicle toans (Refer note 2 below) 10.25% 2819-2020 243 347 441
Rupee term loans from financial institutions
Aditya Birla Finance Limited {Refer note 3 below) 11.65% 2030-2031 5,298.00 540341 -
Total non-current burrowings 5,300,43 5,406,88 5,470,886
Current horrowings
Term Louns
Current maturity of Jowg tern foans .
Punjub Nutional Bank {Refer note | below) - - 13.75
Vehicle louns (Relor note 2 below) 10,25% 2019-2020 1.04 0.94 0.45
Rupee term loans from financial institutions .
Aditya Birlu Finance Limited (Refer note 3 below) 11.65% 2030-2031 8R.00 44.00 -
Total current burrowings §9.04 44.94 14,60
Less: Amount chibbed under “other financial liabilitics™ (89.04) (44.94) (14.60)

Net cwrrent horrowings

Term louns

1.} Rupee term loin from Punjab National Bank is tepaid during the previous year a
First charge ol all movables including fixed assels, current assets, capital goods/capex poods

Hyderabad, Andhra Pradesh.

nd conseguently below mentioned charge has been satisfied and releascd:

and mortgage by way of deposit of title decds of its property at Gachi bowli,

2.3 Vehicle loan taken from 1BFC Bank in FY 2014-15 is securcd by hypothesation of undertying motor vehicle acquired out of such loans. Rate of interest of the toan is 10.25%.

The foan is repaid on agreed monthly installments.

3.3 Rupee term loan from Aditya Birta Finance limited ( sanctioncd amount of Rs. 5500 lakhs} was taken d

uring financial year 201 5-16 and carries the interest of Basc Rate Flus

2,15% during the year, The Loar is repayable in 56 Structured Qnarterly Instaflments payabie after moraterium period of 12 months from the date of first disbursement. The Loan

is secured by:

a) first exclusive charge of all immovables fixed assets {both present and future) of the LT-Gac

tenor of the loan.

b) first exchusive charge on all the movable fixed assots (both preseat and future) of LT Gachibowli hiyderabad hotel.

¢} first exclusive charge on eserow account of entire cash flow of LI Gachibowli hyderabad hotel.

&) Unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee of Lemen Tree Hotels Limited.

Provisions

hibowli hyderabad hotel to provide a minimum cover of 1.75x at all times during the

NMarch 31, 2017
Rs in lnkbs

March 31, 2016
Rs in lakhs

April 1, 2015
Rg in lakhs

Provision for gratuity
Current
Non-current

Provision for leave benefits

Current
Non-current

Total eurrent
Total non-current

4,04 2.83 0.25
6.69 0.51 0.00
335 2,31 .25
+4.83 3.65 1.92
4.83 3.65 1.92
5.52 4.16 1.92
3.35 231 0.25
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14 TFinancial Habilities

March 31, 2017 iiarch 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(iy Trade payables
Micro and small enterprises - - -
Other than micro and small enterprises 178.15 151.10 95.15
178.15 15110 95.15
(i) Other financial liabilities
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April §, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Currenl maturities of long-term borrowings 89.04 44,94 14.60
Retention mioney payable - 110.84 161.44
Bock overdraft 1.31 15.04 -
Other payables
Payabic for capital poods 0.22 0.22 52.63
Outstanding ducs of other creditors 39.46 41,09 18.39
130.03 212.13 2471.06
Other current linbilities
March 31,2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Rs in lakhs

Rs in lakhs

Rs in lakhs

Advance from customers
Statutory labilities

33.409 40.50 492
24,70 25.74 31.13
57.79 66.24

36.05
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16

evenue frem operations

March 31, 2017
Rs in Jakhs

March 31, 2016
Rs in lakhs

Sale of products and services
Room rentals

Food and beverage (excluding liquor and wine}

Liguor and wine
Banquet rentals
Telephone und telex
Other Services

Other operating revenue
Conunission income

Other ncome

1,582,253 1,264,069
441,76 346.28
77.47 63.98
.88 .30
4,48 3.26
240,71 188.73
0.14 036
2,349.64 1,867.60

March 31, 2017
Rs in lalchs

March 31, 2016
Rs in lakhs

Rent received , 5.86 4.55
Excess provision/ credit balances written back 1.00 0.40
Exchange difference (net) 024 -
Sale of serap 1.32 0.57
8,42 5.52
Cost of materials conswmed
Mareh 31, 2017 March 31,2016

Rs in lakhs

Rs in lakhs

Consumption of food & beverages excluding liguor & wine

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Adld; Purchases

Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Cast of feod and beverage consumed

Consumption of liquor & wine
[nventory at the beginning of the year
Add; Purchases

Less: lnventery at the end of the year

Cost of liquor and wine conyumexd

Total Cost of material consumed

Employee benefit expense

+.41 4.34
167,40 179.48
171.81 183.82

5,17 4.41
166.04 17841

6.97 -

18,92 24.74
25.88 2474
0.24 6,97
19.658 17.77
180,29 197.18

Mavch 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs

March 31, 2016
Rs in Iakhs

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident fund and other funds
StafT recruitment and Lraining expenses
Gratuity expense

Leave compensation expenses

StafT welfare expenses

Total

A77.89 317.18
15.59 13.71
0.28 0.43
111 0.77
1,51 2.09
63,21 22.16
459,69 336,34
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20

21

22

Otlicr cxpenses

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Ry in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Consumption of stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others 41,37 25.65
Rent expenges 4.44 4.29
Power and fuel 199.82 175.06
Linen & uniform washing and laundry expenses 20.07 23.97
Guest transportation 32.76 23.96
Spa expenses 10,09 7.68
Subscription charges 3.68 4,02
Repair and maintenance
- Buildings 6,76 873
- Plant and machinery 25.71 21.00
- Others 26.85 15.38
Rates and taxes 63.03 68.21
[nsurance 34 7.24
Communication costs 35.88 3392
Printing and slationery 11,38 7.96
Traveling and conveyance 5,64 5.09
Vehicle running and maintenance 3.35 5.05
Advertisement and business promotion 93,79 7043
Managemenl fees 117.00 62,69
Commission -other than sole selling agsnl 22.00 9.78
Securily and cleaning expenses 43.12 44,08
Membership and subscriptions 1,11 1.51
Legal and professional fecs 7.92 14.26
Waler and sewerage charges 17.27 12.08
Exchange difference (net) - 0.11
Paymenl to auditors 0.25 0.64
Provision for slowmon moving inventory 0.07 -
MisceHaneous cxpenses .62 8.87
Total 810.16 661.66
Payment Lo auditor
As auditor 0.25 0.5¢
for wther services - 0,14

0.25 .64

Finasnce cpst

March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs

March 31, 2016
Rg in lakhs

Interest

- on term Joans from banks - 457,85
- on loans from financial institutions 639,33 252,79
- on vehicle loans 0.41 0.50
- an ncome tex - - 0.0}
Bank charges {including commission an credit card collection} 23.05 20.18

662.79 731.33
Irepreciation and amer(zatin expense

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rs in talkhs Rs in lakhs

Depreciation of tangible assets 438.60 435.25
Amortization of intangible asscts 7.70 7.68

446.30 442,94
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23 Finance income

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Rs in lakhs Rg in lakhs
Profit on sale of investment 11,57 31.49
Interest Income on !
Bank deposits . 8.94 8.23
Others 0.58 1.52
Fair valuation profit en financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1.68 2.90
22.77 44.15

24 Earnings per Shave (Basie and Diluted)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profil for the year-attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted
average number of Equity shares ouistanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable 1o equity holders of the company by the weighted average
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares thal would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potentinl Bquity shares into Equity shares.

The following dala reflects the inputs to caleulation of basic and diluted EPS

Mareh 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Profit / (loss) afler tax {Rs in lakhs) (184.75) {4717.51)
Profit / (Loss) for caleulation of basic and diluted EPS (184,75) 7S
Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic KPS oo 130,366,000 130,366,000
Weighled average mumber of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution

Weighted average mumber of cyuity shares it caleulating dilated EPS 130,366,000 130,366,000

Basic and diluted BPS {0.14) (C.37)
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25,

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires managenient to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assuinptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
lighiliticsaffected in future periods.

Judgemnents

fn the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant cffect on the amounts recognised in the financial siatements:

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of ‘business in relation to claims against the
Company, including legal, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only
when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and
potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of
cslimates regarding the outcowne of future events.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about futare developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur,

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannol be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using other vaiuation
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is
not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in cstablishing fair values. Judgements include considerations
of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of
disposal caleulation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use
caleulation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and
de not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGUbeing tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the
growth ratc used for extrapolation purposes,

Taxes

Detferred tax asscls are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed
at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest tates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and
gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 26.

26. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans
Rs. In lakhs

March 31,2017 .- March 31,2016 April 1, 2015

Gratuity plan 4.04 2.83 0.25
Total 4.04 283 0.25

The Cotmpany has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five ycars of service is entitled to specific benefit.
The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The
Company makes provision of such gratuity asset/ liability in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial
valuation as per the Projected unit credit method.
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Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at March 31, 2017

Gratuity cost charged te profit or loss Remeasurement gains/{losses) in ether comprehensive income Rs. Int lakhs
Retorn on 4
v Actuoarial
Net Snb-total ?lzzlf:::i::s chaﬁrt;a:::;‘slin changes Sub- Contribution
April 1, Service tnterest included in  Benefits amounlsg fromgchan e i?] nrising from - Experience total b March
2016 cost profit or loss paid . . i changesin - adjustments  included ¥ 31,2017
expense included in demographic . eaployer
s l finnncial fa OCI
set inferest assumptrons "
assumptions
expense)
Definzd benefit
cbligation 2.83 1.00 0.21 £.21 (0.32) - - .13 0.19 0.31 - 4.04
Fair value of plan
assets - - - - - - - - - - - -
Benelit linbility 2.83 1.00 .21 1.21 (0.32) - - 0.13 0.19 0.31 - 4.4
Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at March 31, 2016:
Gratuity cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement gains/{losses) in other comprehensive income R, I lakhs
l}elurn on al Actuarial
Sub-total plan assets \ Actunnfl . ehnges | Contributt
April 1, Service el includedin ~ Benofits  CFCTding - changes arising arisiog from  Experience | Sub-total onfribation 44 arch
interest . AMmounls from changes in " included in shy
2015 cost profit or toss paid clanges fn adjustnients 31,2016
expense - Encluded In dentographic funncial 0ocCt employer
net inferest Assimpiions "
assumplions
expense)
Defined benefit
obligation 0.25 0.75 0,02 077 (0.13) - - 0.02 191 1.94 - 283
Fair value of plan
assels - - - . - - . . . . . -
Benefit fabllity .25 0.75% 0,02 0,77 £0.13) - - 0.02 1.91 1.94 - 1.83
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The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are

shown below:
Discount rate:
Pension plan

Future salary increases:
Pension plan

March 31,2017 March 31,2016  April 1, 2015

Life expectation for pensioners at the

age of 05:
Pension plan
Male

Female

% % %
6.70% 7.60% 7.80%
5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Years Years Years

60 60 60
.60 of 60

A quaniitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2017 is as shown below:

India gratuity plan:

Assumptions

Sensitivity Level

Impact on defined benefit
obligation

Assumptions

Sensitivity Level

Impact on defined benefit
obligation

March 31,
2017

March 31,
2017

March 31,
2017

March 31,
2017

Discount rate Future salary increases

1% Increase 1% decrease

1% increase

1% decrease

0.i4 0.15 0.15 0.14
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2016 2016 2016 2016

Discount rate Future salary increascs

1% increase 1% decrease 1% 1% decrease
increase
0.10 0.11 0.11 0.10

The sensitivity anatyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact
on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the

end of the reporting period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Duration (Ycars)

R

5
Above 5

Taotal expected payments

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

0.71 0.53
0.71 0.50
0.7} 0.50
0.7 0.47
6.57 C.44
189 142
.24 3.86
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The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5
years (March 31, 2016: 5 years).

27. Commitments and contingencies

a. Commitments

Estimated amount of contracis remaining to be executed on capital aceount and not provided
for: '

At March 31, 2017, the Company had NIL commitments {March 31, 2016: Rs NIL, April 1,2015: Rs
NIL) ,

b. Contingent Habilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
" Rs. Inlakhs

As at March| As at March | As at March
31,2017 31,2016 31,2015

a, |Income tax demand for AY, 2011-12 719 - 7.19 7.19

b. |Counter guarantees issued in respect of guarantees 81,55 81.55 81.55
issued by company’s bankers
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28. Related Party Transactions

a) Names of related parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have

oceurred,

Holding company .Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Fellow subsidiary companics - Fleur Hotels Private Limited
- Manakin Resorts Private Limited
- Begonia Hotels Private Limited
. Grey Fox Project Management Co. Pvt. Ltd.
- Iora Hotels Private Limited
- Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited

Entetprises owned or significantly influenced by - Spank Management Services Private Limited

key management personnel or their relatives

Key Management Personnel “Mr. Rajeev Janveja (Whole Time Director w.e.f
s November, 2015) |
-Mr, Dominic James Doran(Director}
-Mr. Rajesh Kumar (Director)
“Mr. Arjur Sawhny (Independent Director)
-Mr. Paramartha Saikia (Independent Director)

b} Additional related parties as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions have taken place
during the yeat:

Company Secretary - Ms. Sonali Manchanda
Chief Financia! Officer : Mr. Sandeep Kumar

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related
patties for the relevant financial year
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Rs. In lakhs

Eaterprises
owned or
Year Holdin Fellow significantly Manla(egment
Transactions with Related Party g o 1 influenced by g
Ended company | subsidiary k personnel or
ey management . .
their relatives
personnel or
their relatives
Reimbursement of expenses incurred
on company’s behalf
Fleur Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-17 - - - “
31-Mar-16 - 0.07 - -
01-Apt-15 - 0.07 - -
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 0.10 - . -
31-Mar-16 - - - -
01-Apr-15 - - - -
Amount received on company’s
behall
Fleur Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 - 11.62 - -
01-Apr-15 - 0.11 - -
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 - “ -
31-Mar-16 i0.19 - - -
0t-Apr-15 - - - -
Amount received on behalf of the
 party
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 7.99 - - -
31-Mar-16 2.99 - - -
01-Apr-15 0.46 - - -
Fleur Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-17 - - - s
31-Mar-16 - 8.47 - -
01-Apr-15 - 0.79 - -
Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 - 0.05 - -
01-Apr-15 - - - -
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Issue of Bonus Shares

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 - - “

31-Mar-16 - o .

01-Apr-15 720.00 - -

Purchase of SFIS License

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 - - -

31-Mar-16 - - -

01-Apr-15 56.42 - -

Purchase of Compulsorily
Convertible Debentures

Tora Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-17 - - e

31-Mar-16 - 1,000.00 -

01-Apr-15 - - ' -

Loans taken

Letmon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 - - -

31-Mar-16 - - -

01-Apr-15 | 2,165.74 - -

Loans repaid

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 - - -

31-Mar-16 - - -

01-Apr-15 | 3,996.67 - -

Begonia Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-17 - - -

31-Mar-16 - - -

01-Apr-15 - 122.52 -

Manakin Resorts Pvt. Ltd. 31-Mar-17 - - -

31-Mar-16 - - -

01-Apr-15 - 25.70 -

Project Management fees

Grey fox Project Management Co. Pvt

Limited 31-Mar-17 - _ .

31-Mar-16 - - -

01-Apr-15 - 71.91 -
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Spank Management Services Pvt, Ltd. 31-Mar-17 - - - -

31-Mar-16 - - - -
01-Apr-15 - - 213.48 -

Remuneration paid

Mr. Rajeev Janveja 31-Mar-17 - - - 3710
31-Mar-16 - - - 14.57
01-Apr-15

Mr, Sandeep Kumar 31-Mar-17 - - - 21.74
31-Mar-16 - - - 20.16
01-Apr-15 - - - -

Mrs. Sonali Manchanda 31-Mar-17 - - - 11.66
31-Mar-16 - - 9.95
01-Apr-15

Management Fees & Sales
Promotion{On net basis)

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 192.56 - - -

31-Mar-16. [ 119.42 - - -

01-Apr-15 | 331 - - -

Balances outstanding at the year-

end-

1) Other Current Liabilities

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 9.24 - - -

3{-Mar-16 | 12.94 - . -
01-Apr-15 3.01 - - -

Mr. Rajeev Janveja 31-Mar-17 - - - 0.67

’ 31-Mar-16 - - - 0.41
01-Apr-15 - - -

Mr. Sandeep Kumar 31-Mar-17 - - - 0.02
31-Mar-16 - - - 0.29
01-Apr-15

Mis. Sonali Manchanda 31-Mar-17 - - - 0.02
31-Mar-16 - - - 0.02

01-Apr-15
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2) Short term loans & advances

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 | 7.99 ; -

31-Mar-16 - - -

Ol-Ap-15 | 0.46 - -

Fleur Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-17 - - -

31-Mar-16 - - -

01-Apr-15 - 0.61 -

Investment in Convertible

Debentures

Tora Hotels Private Limited 3i-Mar-17 - 1,000.00 - -
31-Mar-16 - 1,000.00 L -
01-Apr-15 - - - -

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in
arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest fiee and
settlement occurs in cash. For the vear ended March 31, 2017, the Company has not recorded any
impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by relatéd parties (March 31,2016: Rs Nil, April
1, 2015: Rs Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial
position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Commitments with related parties
The company has not entered into any commitments with related parties during the year.

29, Fair values measurement .-

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of
fair values: -

Rs.in lakhs

Carrying value Fair value

31-Mar-17  31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15 31-Mar-17  31-Mar-16  01-Apr-15

Financial assets

Investments 1,254,530 1,178.26 - 1,254.50 1,178.26 “
Other Financial Assets 148.93 122,81 100.07 148.93 122.81 100.07
Trade Receivable 142.19 188.90 50.76 142.19 188.90 50,76
Cash and cash 75.87 63.17 1,565.73 75.87 6307 1,565.73
equivalent

Loans - - 1.08 - - 1.08

Total 1,621.49 1,553.14

1,621.49 1,553.14 1,711.64
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Financial liabilities

Borrowings 5,297.82 5,405.92 5,470.86 5,300.43 5,406.88 5,470.86
Trade Payable 178.15 151.10 95.15 178.15 151.16 95.15
Other financial 130.03 212.13 247.06 130.03 212,13 247.06
liabilities
Total 5,606.00 5,769.15 5,813.07 5,608.62 5,770.11 5,813.07
a, Financial instroments by category
Rs. Inlakhs
3i-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Amortised Amortised ] Amortised
FVTPL Cost FVTPL Cost FVTPL Cost
TFinancial Assets X
Trade Receivables - 142.19 - 188.90 - 50.76
Investments in Mutual 254.50 i 178.26 - ) )
Funds
Interest accrued on deposits .
with banks and others } 27.48 B A4 19.43 ) 12.02
Security Deposits - 26,52 - 21.83 - 6.51
Other bank balances - 81.55 - 81.55 - 81.55
Cash and Cash Equivalents . 75.87 63.17 - 1,565.73
Accrued Revenue - 13.39 - - - -
Loans - - - 1.08
Total Financial Assets 254,50 366.98 178.26 374.88 - 1717.65
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - 5,300.43 - ] 5,406.88 - 5,470.86
Trade Payables - 178.15 - 151.10 - 95.15
Other Current Financial . 130.03 - 212,13 - 247.06
Liabilities :
Total Financial Liabilities |- - 5,608.62 - 5,770.11 - 5,813.07
3i-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15
FVTOCI Amortised FVTOCI Amortised FVTOCL Amortised
Cost Cost Cost
Investment in Fellow
Subsidial'ies’ 1,000.00 = 1,000.00 - = =

b. Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions,

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels
depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as

follows:
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i) Level 1
Inputs are quoted prices (una

ii) Level 2

Inputs are inputs that are observable, eith

within level 1 for the asset or liability.

jif) Level 3

Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
observable related market data or Company’s assumptions a

djusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

er directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included

liability reflecting significant modifications to
bout pricing by market participants.

The following table provides the. fair value measurement hicrarchy of the Company’s asscts and
liabilities:
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Rs. In lakhs
— N N T March 31,2017
— | Levell Level 2 T Tleveld | Total
Financial assets
Tinancial investments as FVOCI
' Investment in Fellow subsidiaries B S S 1,000.00 1,000.00
Financial investments as FYTPL
(ﬂ)@ Mutual Funds T 25450 T o] 25450
B — 1 ~ March 31,2016 B
—— —  |lLevell ﬁfmm Total
T*‘il?ﬁiaﬁssets - ] S o
| Investment in Fellow subsidiaries I 1,000.00 1’0()%
¥inancial investments as FVTPL
ﬁm?d Mutual Funds 17826 | [ 17826
| Total a6 -1 100000 117826 ]
] April 1, 2015
T Tevel 1 [Level2 TLevel3 Total

Financial assets

Tipancial investments as FYQCI

Investment in Fellow subsidiaries

Financial investments as FYTPL

Quoted Mutual Fuads

Total
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The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade
payables, bank overdrafts, Interest accrued on bank deposits with banks, other current financial assets
and other current financial liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short-
_ term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of loans, security deposits, borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities are
considered to be the same as their fair values, as there is an immaterial change in the lending rates.

30. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to
support its operations. The Company's financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and
cash & cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior
management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management is
supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial
risk governance framework for the Company. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the
Company's senior management that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each risk, which are summarised as below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and
borrowings, deposits and payables/receivables in foreign currencies.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates refates primarily to the Company’s fong-term debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The Company is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company
expects the variable rate to.decline, accordingly the Company is currently carrying its loans at variable
interest rates. '

Rs. In lakhs
March 31,2017 | March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Variable rate borrowings 5,386.00 5.447.41 5,480.20
Fixed rate borrowings 4.41 5.26
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Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity 10 a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that
portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held
constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating ratc borrowings, as
fotlows: '

Increase/decrease in | Effect on profit before
basis points tax
Rs. In lakhs

31-Mar-17

INR 50 2747
INR -50 {27.47)

31-Mar-16
. INR ‘ 50 27.58

INR -50 (27.58)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, teading t0 a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from iis operating activities
(primarily irade receivables and deposits to landiords) and from its financing activities, including deposits
with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables and Security Deposits

Customer credit risk is managed by business through the Company's established ‘policy, procedures and
contro! relating to customer credii risk management. Credit quality of each customer is assessed and credit
limils are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables and security deposits
are regularly monitored.

An impairment analysis is performed for all major customers at cach reporting date on an individual basis. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables arc grouped into homogenous group and assessed for
impairment collectively. The calculation is based on historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in note 29. The Company
cvaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in
several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent marketss

Liquidity risk

The company's principal source of iiquidity is cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated
from operations. The company has no outstanding bank borrowings. The company believes that the working
capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived

As of March 31, 2017, the Company had a working capital of Rs. 199.36 iakhs including cash and cash
equivalents of Rs. 75.87 lakhs. As of March 31, 2016, the Company had a working capital of Rs 83.81 lakhs
including cash and cash equivalents of Rs 63.17 lakhs. '

Foreign currency risk
Foreign curreney risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign cxchange rates. The Company has no cxposure in foreign currency.
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(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Company's established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a
customer is assessed and individual eredit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in
terms of number of days and amount.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 29. The Company does not hold collateral as
security.

{b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury
department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The Company's
maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2017 and 31
March 2016 is the carrying amount as illustrated in Note 29.

Gross carrying amount of trade receivables

Rs, In lakhs
Ageing March 31, March 31, March 31,

2017 2016 2015
Not due - - -

0-60 days past due 72.95 126.26 40.53

61-120 days past due 28.14 40.72 9.64

121-180 days past due 9.87 4,75 0.59
180-365 days past due 2728 15.22 -
365-730 days past due 3.48 1.95 -
more than 730 days 0.47 - -

Expecied credit [oss for trade receivables under simplified approach

Ageing March 31, | March 31, | Mareh 31,

2017 2016 2015
Gross carrying amount 142.19 188.90 50.76
Expected credit losses - - -
Carrying amount of trade receivables (net of 142.19 188.90 50.76
impairment)

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The
Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Company assessed the
concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has
aceess to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled
over with existing lenders. '
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on

contractua! undiscounted payments,

Year ended
31-Mar-17
Borrowings (Other
than Preference Share)
Trade and other
payables

Other financial
liabilities

Year ended
31-Mar-16
Borrowings {other than
Preference Share)
Trade and other
payables

Other financial
liabilities

As at 1 April 2015

Borrowings (Other
than Preference Share)
Trade and other
payables

Other financial
liabilities

Rs. In lakhs
Less .
On than 3 3to 12 1105 > 5 years Total
demand months years
months
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

- 0.17 88.87 1,300.43 3,999.98 5,389.45
178.15 - - - - 178.15
40.99 - - - - 40.99
219.15 0.17 88.87 1,300.43 3,999,98 5,608.60

Less
On than 3 31012 1io 5years >5years Total
demand months .
months .
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

- 0.15 44,79 1,059.47 4,347.38 5,451.79
151.10 - - - - 151.10
167.18 - - - - 167.18
318.28 0.15 44,79 1,059.47 4,347.38 5,770.08

Less

On than 3 Sto 12 ftoSyears > 5years Total
demand months

months

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs,

- 0.14 14.46 1,819.41 3,651.46 5,48547
95.15 - - - - 95.15
232.46 - - - - 232.46

327.61 3,651.46 5,813.08
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

31. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share
premium and ail other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary
objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximisc the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requitements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, retum capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total

capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bear

trade payabies, less cash and cash equivalents.

Rs. In lakhs

ing Joans and borrowings,

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-13
Rs. Rs. Rs.
Borrowings 5,300.43 5,406.88 5470.86
Trade payables 178.15 151.10 95.15
Other financial liabilities 130.03 212.13 2477.06
Less: cash and cash equivalents 75.87 63.17 1,565.73
Net debt 5,532,75 5,706.94 4,247.33
Total capital 5,856.42 6,041.17 6,518.68
Capital and net debt 11,389.17 11,748.10 10,766.01
Gearing Ratio 49% 49% 39%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
ended March 31, 2017 and 31 March 201 0.

managing capital during the years
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32. First-time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2017, are the first the Company has prepared
in accordance with Ind A8, For periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133
of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
(Indian GAAP).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable
for periods ending on 31 March 2017, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2016, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing
these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2015, the
Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the
Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at 1 April
2015 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2016.

" Exemptions applied

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain

requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the following exemptions:

e Property Plant & Equipment - As perm:tted by IND AS 101, the Company has elected to continue
with the carrying values under previous GAAP for all the items of property, plant & equipment.
The Same selection has been made in respect of Intangibles Assets. The Carrying value of property
plant and equipment as aforesaid are after making adjustments relating to decommissioning
liabilities

Estimates

The estimates at 1 April 2015 and at 31 March 2016 are consistent with those made for the same dates
in accordance with Indian GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies)
apart from impairment of financial assets based ‘on expected credit loss model where application of
Indian GAAP did not require estimation.

---This space has been intentionally left blank -
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Reconciliation of equity as at March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015 ((date of transition to Ind AS)
Rs. In lakhs

March 31,2016 April 1, 2015
Previous GAAP Adjustment Ind AS Previous GAAP Adjustment Ind AS

ASSETS
Non-current assets -
Property, plant and equipment 10,187.87 - 10,187.87 10,579.84 - 16,579.84
Intangible assets 35.59 - 35.5% 4328 - 43.28
Financial assets '
Investments 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 - . -
Loans - - - - - -
Other financial assels §21.80 121.80 99.06 - 99.06
Other non-current assels 21.28 - 21.28 8.27 . 827

11,366.54 - 11,366.54 10,730.45 - 10,730.45
Current assets ,
Inventories 23.01 - 2301 11.65 . 11.65
Financial assets
Loan - - - 1.08 - .08
Trade receivables 188.90 - 188.50 50.76 - 50.76
Cash and Cash equivalents 63.17 - 63.17 1,565.73 - 1,565.73
Investments 175.36 2.90° 178.26 - - -
Other financial assels 1.01 - 1.01 1.01 - 1.01
Other current assets 63.10 - 63.10 9.29 - 9.29

514.55 2,90 51745 1,639.52 - 1,639.52

Total Assets : 11,881,09 2.90 11,883.99 12,369.97 - 12,369.97
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Lquity

Equity Share capital 1,303.66 - 1,303.66 1,303.66 - 1,303.66

Otter Equity 4,735.57 1.94 4,737.51 5.217.60 2.38) 5.215.02

Total Equity 6,039.23 1.9 6,041,17 6,521,26 -~ (2.58) 6,518.68

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities K

Borowings 5,405.92 0.97 5,406.88 5,470.86 - 5,470.86

Long ter provisions 2.31 - 2.31 0.25 - 0.25
5,408.23 : 0,97 5,409.19 547111 - 547111

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities .

Trade payables 151.10 - 151.10 02.57 258 95.15

Other financial liabilities 212.13 - 212,13 247.06 - 247.06

Other current liabilities 66.24 - 66,24 36,05 - 36,05

Provisions 4,16 - 4,16 1.92 - 1.92

433.63 - 433.63 377.60 2.58 3480.18
Total Liabilities 5,841,86 0.97 5,842.82 5,848.71 2.58 5,851.29
Totsl Equity and Liabilities 11,881.09 2.90 11,883.99 12,369.97 - 12,369,917
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Reconciliation of retained earnings as at March 31, 2017 , March 31, 2016 and A

transition to Ind AS)

pril 1, 2015 ((date of
{ Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Retained Profit for the Retained Profit for the
earnings (Mar year earnings year
15) (Mar 16)
Balance as per Indian GAAP (319.00) (482.01) (801.01) (184.78)
Opening Ind AS | Current year Current year
BS adjustments | adjustments Total adjustments
On account of income booked on
revaluation of current investments 2.89 2.89 1.68
Total Added - 2.89 2.89 1.68
On account of transaction cost .
amortisation - (0.97) (0.97) “(1.64)
Total Deducted {2.58) 2.58 (0.97) (1.64)
Net impact (2.58) 4.50 1.93 .- 0.03
Balance as on 31st March 2016 as per ' '
Ind AS (321.58) 477.51) (799.09) (184.75)
Balance as per Note No. 11 (321.58) (477.5h) (799.09) {184.75)
Difference - (0.00) - -
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Reconciliation of statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2016

Particulars Previous GAAP | Adjustments Ind AS
Rs. Rs. Rs.
Revenue From Operations 1,867.60 - 1,867.60
Other Income 5.52 - 552
Total Income 1,873.12 - 1,873.12
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 197.18 - 197.18
Employee benefits expense 358.28 (1.94) 356.34
Other expenses 661.66 - 661.66
Prior Period Item 2.58 (2.58) ‘ -
Total expenses 1,219.69 {4.51) 1,215,18
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 653.42 4.51 657.94
amortisation
{(EBITDA)
Finance costs 730.36 0.97 731.33
Depreciation and amortization expense 442,94 - 442,94
Finance Income (41.24) (2.90) (44.15)
Loss before tax -~ (478.63) 6.44 (472.18)
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 3.39 3.39
(2) Deferred tax ) - - -
(3) Income tax adjustment related to previous years - -
Loss for the period (482.02) 6.44 (475.57)
Other comprehensive income - - -
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - - -
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans - {1.94) {1.94)
Income tax relating to items-that will not be reclassified to - - -
profit or loss
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (482.02) 4,51 (477.51)
{Comprising Profit {Loss) and Other Comprehensive
Income for the period)
Earnings per equity share: - - -
(1} Basic - (0.37)
(2) Diluted - {0.37)
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Nightingale Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Footnotes to the reconciliation of equity as at April 1, 2015 and March 31, 2016 and profit or loss for
the year ended March 31, 2016

Financial Assets

Based on Ind AS - 109, financial Assets in the form of investments in mutual funds are recorded
at fair value whereas under Indian GAAP, the Company had recorded the aforesaid investments at
cost or market value which ever was lower. As a result of this Financial Assets & Profit has been
increased by March 31, 2016:- Rs. 2.90 lacs. March 31, 2015 (Nil)

Under Indian GAAP, the Company had created provision for impairment of receivables consists
only in respect of specific amount for incurred losses. Under Ind AS, impairment allowance has
been determined based on Expected Loss model (ECL). Due to ECL model, the Company
impaired its frade receivable by Rs. Nil on 1 April 2015 which has been eliminated against
retained earnings. Further during the year ended March 31, 2016 the Company has impaired the
receivables amounting to Rs, Nil and considered the impairment loss of Rs. Nil. Consequently for
the year ended March 31, 2016, other expenses have been reduced by Rs. Nil. -

Financial Liability

Under Indian GAAP, transaction costs of Rs. 1.64 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2016 and
Rs, 0.96 lakhs as on 1 April 2015, incurred in connection with borrowings are amortised upfront
and charged to profit or loss for the period. Under Ind AS, transaction costs are included in the
initial recognition amount of financial liability and charged to profit or loss using the effective
interest method.

Deferred tax e

Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which
focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12
requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on
temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and
its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on
new temporary differences which was not required under Indian GAAP.

In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According to the
accounting policies, the Company has to account for such differences. Deferred tax adjustments
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained earnings or a separate
component of equity,

Defined benefit liabilities

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-
employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under Indian GAAP, the entire cost,
including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to profit or loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements
[comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding atounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit lability] are recognised immediately in
the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained carnings through OCL Thus the
employee benefit cost is reduced by Rs. 1.94 lacs and remeasurement gains/ losses on defined
benefit plans of Rs. 1.94 lacs has been recognized in the OCL

Statement of cash flows

The transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS has not had a material impact on the statement of
cash flows.
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33. The details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8th
November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016 are as provided in the Table below:

Rs. In lakhs
SBNs Other Total
denomination
notes

Closing cash in hand as on 08
November 2016 2.58 0.75 3.33
(+) Permitted receipts - 8.43 8.43
(-) Permitted payments - 2.92 292
(-} Amount deposited in Banks 2.58 237 4.95
Closing cash in hand as on 30
December 2016 - 3.89 3.89

34. Segment Reporting

Hoteliering business is the company’s only business segment and domestic operations is the only
geographical segment and hence disclosure of segment wise information is not applicable under
Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.

35. The Company’s holding company has confirmed that it shall provide continuing financial support
to the Company to pay off its debts, as and when they fall due. Accordingly, these financial

statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

36. Supplementary Statutory Information

Rs. In lakhs

36.1 | Earnings in foreign currency (Accrual | March 31,2017
basis) March 31, 2016
Room, Restaurant and other services 140.66 116.76
140.66 116.76
Rs. In lakhs

36.2 | Expenditure in foreign currency (Accrual | March 31, 2017
basis) March 31, 2016
Commission / Advertisement and business 32.84 12.68

promotion

32.84 12.68
36.3 | Value of imports calculated on CIF basis March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Capital goods - 1.98
- 1.98
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37. Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006,

March 31,
2017

March April 1,
31,2016 2015

The principal amount and the interest due thereon
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year

Nil

Nil Nil

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of
section 16 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year

Nil

Nil Nil

The amount of interest due and payable for the period
of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
bevond the appointed day during the vear) but without
adding the interest specified under Micro Small and
Medinm Enterprise Development Act, 2006,

Nil

Nil Nil

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid
at the end of each accounting year; and

Nil

Nil Nil

the amount of further interest- remaining due and
payable even in the succeeding years, uniil such date
when the interest dues as above are actuaily paid to the
small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,

20006

Nil

Nil Nil

As per our report of even date

For Jain Jindal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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